BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE : D-35, ANAND VIHAR, DELHI-110092
Tel.: 011-22140122 * Email: brightbuildtech.roc@gmail.com
CIN : U45201DL2006PTC146221

SHORTER NOTICE

SHORTER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 15™ ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT D-35, ANAND VIHAR, NEW DELHI-
110092 ON TUESDAY 307 DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2021 AT 05:30 PM TO TRANSACT THE
FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS: -

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt (a) the audited Financial Statement of the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolution(s) as an
Ordinary Resolution(s):

SPECIAL BUSINESS: -

2. REGULARIZATION OF MR. PRATAP SINGH RATHI BEARING DIN: 05195185 AS
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and section 161 (1) and
any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), Mr. Pratap Singh Rathi (DIN: 05195185), who was appointed as an Additional
Director on 19% April, 2021, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to file such forms, intimations whether physically or electronically or do such
other acts, deeds, or things as are necessary, expedient or incidental for the purpose of
giving effect to the aforesaid resolution”.

3. REGULARIZATION OF MR. JAGDEEP SINGH GILL BEARING DIN: 01599882 AS
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and section 161(1) and
any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under



(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), Mr. Jagdeep Singh Gill (DIN: 01599882), who was appointed as an Additional
Director on 19t April, 2021, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Director of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to file such forms, intimations whether physically or electronically or do such
other acts, deeds, or things as are necessary, expedient or incidental for the purpose of
giving effect to the aforesaid resolution”.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

VA[f LIMITED

For BRIGHT BUILDTECH

DIRECTOR

PRATAP SINGH RATHI
DIRECTOR
DIN: 05195185
Place: DELHI
Date: 30.11.2021



NOTES:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THIS ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (AGM) MAY APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A
POLL ON HIS BEHALF. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. PROXIES, IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE RECEIVED AT
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-
EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE AGM. THE PROXY
MUST BE DATED AND STAMPED. THE PROXY FORM IS ATTACHED ALONG
WITH THIS SHORTER NOTICE.

THE REGISTER OF DIRECTOR AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
SHAREHOLDING MAINTAINED UNDER SECTION 170 OF COMPANIES ACT,
2013 SHALL BE OPEN FOR INSPECTION AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING.

- CORPORATE MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO SEND A CERTIFIED TRUE CcOory

OF THE BOARD RESOLUTION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 113 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AUTHORIZING THEIR REPRESENTATIVES TO
ATTEND AND VOTE ON THEIR BEHALF AT THE MEETING.

MEMBERS, PROXIES ZAND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES ARE
REQUESTED TO BRING TO THE MEETING, THE ATTENDANCE SLIP
ENCLOSED HEREWITH, DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED MENTIONING
THEREIN. DETAILS OF THEIR DP ID AND CLIENT ID/FOLIO NO. DUPLICATE
ATTENDANCE SLIP OR COPIES OF THE REPORT AND ACCOUNTS WILL
NOT BE MADE AVAILABLE AT THE AGM VENUE.

A ROUTE MAP SHOWING DIRECTIONS TO THE VENUE OF THE 15TH :&GM IS
GIVEN AT THE END OF THIS SHORTER NOTICE AS PER THE REQUIREMENT
OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2 ON “GENERAL MEETINGS”.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF COMPANIES ACT,
2013

The following explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 sets
out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned under Item No. 2 and 3 of the
accompanying notice dated 30t November, 2021.

ITEM NO. 2:

REGULARIZATION OF MR. PRATAP SINGH RATHI BEARING DIN: 05195185 AS
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Pratap Singh Rathi as an Additional
Director pursuant to section 161 (1) of Companies Act, 2013 through Board Resolution dated
19t April, 2021. Mr. Pratap Singh Rathi holds office as an Additional Director till the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting as provided in section 161(1).

Accordingly, in terms of the requirements of the provisions of section 161(1) of Companies
Act, 2013 approval of the members of the Company is required for regularization of Mr.
Pratap Singh Rathi as a Director of the Company.

Brief profile of Mr. Pratap Singh Rathi is given below for reference of the member:

Mr. Pratap Singh Rathi is a person of vision of excellent entrepreneurial skills. He is also
responsible for maintenance of relationships with corporate clients that would lead the
Company to achieve new benchmarks.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or any relatives of such directors or KMPs

are interested in the resolution. .

The Board recommends the resolution to the members for their consideration and approval.

ITEM NO. 3:

REGULARIZATION OF MR. JAGDEEP SINGH GILL BEARING DIN: 01599882 AS
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Jagdeep Singh Gill as Additional
Director pursuant to section 161 (1) of Companies Act, 2013 through Board Resolution dated
19t April, 2021. Mr, Jagdeep Singh Gill holds office as an Additional Director till the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting as provided in section 161 (1),

Accordingly, in terms of the requirements of the provisions of section 161(1) of Companies
Act, 2013 approval of the members of the Company is required for regularization of Mr.

Jagdeep Singh Gill as Director of the Company.

Brief profile of Mr. Jagdeep Singh Gill is given below for reference of the member:



Mr. Jagdeep Singh Gill is a person with highly influential management skills and his
knowledge in the Real Estate industry would lead the Company to achieve new benchmarks.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or any relatives of such directors or KMPs
are interested in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution to the members for their consideration and approval.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

For BRIGHT BUILDTECHPRIVALE LIMITED

DIRECTOR

PRATAP SINGH RATHI
DIRECTOR
DIN: 05195185

Place: DELHI
Date: 30.11.2021



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
ATTENDANCE SLIP

CIN: U45201DL2006PTC146221
REG. OFFICE: D-35, ANAND VIHAR, DELHI-110092
E-MAIL: brightbuildtech.roc@gmail.com

NAME OF THE MEMBER/PROXY

ADDRESS

REGISTERED FOLIO NUMBER

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD

ID CARD OF THE ATTENDEE

ID NUMBER OF THE ATTENDEE

I certify that I am a registered shareholder or proxy for registered shareholder of the
Company.

I hereby in full senses accord my presence at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company held on Tuesday, 30t November, 2021 at 05:30 PM at the registered office of the
Company at D-35, Anand Vihar, Delhi-110092.

Member’s /Proxy’s Name

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

NOTE: PLEASE FILL IN THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE
ENTRANCE OF THE VENUE



Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : U45201DL.2006PTC146221
NAME OF THE COMPANY ¢ BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
REGISTERED OFFICE : D-35, ANAND VIHAR, DELHI-110092

Name of the Member:
Registered address:
E-mail Id;

Folio No:

I being the member of Bright Buildtech Private Limited HoOIMNG, v shares, hereby appoint

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my proxy to attend and vote for me and on my behalf at the 15" Annual General Meeting of members
of the Company, to be held on 30"" November, 2021 at the registered office of the Company at D-35,
Anand Vihar, New Delhi-110092 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:

Resolution Number:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt (a) the audited Financial Statement of the Company
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon, -

2. Regularization of Mr. Pratap Singh Rathi bearing DIN: 05195185 as a Director of the

Company.
3. Regularization of Mr. Jagdeep Singh Gill bearing DIN: 01599882 as a Director of the
Company.
Signed this .......... day 0faiiiciniivares 2021 Affix Revenue

Stamp

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting,.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE : D-35, ANAND VIHAR, DELHI-110092
Tel.: 011-22140122 » Email: brightbuildtech.roc@gmail.com
CIN : U45201DL2006PTC146221

BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTORS” REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 15" Annual Report on the affairs of the
Company together with the Financial Statement of Accounts for the Financial Year ended on
31st March, 2021.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:

The Profit & Loss accounts attached herewith gives the clear indication of the performance
of the Company. A summary of the Company’s performance from 15t April, 2020 to 31
March, 2021 is as follows:

-Fi.r;:_mcial Year Financial Year
PARTICULARS 2020-2021 2019-20
(Rs. / Lakh) (Rs. / Lakh)
TURNOVER - 258.68 8,840.36
PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE .
TAXATION (12,310.54) 1417.11 o
LESS: TAX 0 (343.44)
PROFIT/LOSS AFTER _ ~
TAX (12,310_.3;1)_ 1,760.55
ADD: BALANCE B/F . -
FROM PREVIOUS YEAR 1,115.95 (644.60)
BALANCE PROFIT/LOSS (11,194.59) 1,115.95
C/F TO NEXT YEAR

2, RESULT OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:
The highlights of the Company’s performance are as under:

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year ended
31st March, 2021, which affect the financial position of the Company

3. TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE:

No amount is to be transferred to General Reserve during the financial year ended 31
March, 2021.



DIVIDEND:

Due to inadequate profits for FY 2020-21, no dividend is permitted to be paid to the
members as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) and the rules framed
thereunder.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate
Company.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

Your Company does not have any subsidiaries, so there is no need to prepare
consolidated financial statement for the Financial Year 2020-21.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

During the year under review, there has been no such significant and material orders
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and
Company’s operations in future.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY:

During the financial year 2020-2021, Company has increased its present Authorized Share
Capital from Rs.5,00,000/- (Rupees Five Lakh only) divided into 50,000 (Fifty Thousand)
Equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs.10,05,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores Five
Lakhs only) divided into 1,00,50,000 (One Crore Fifty Thousand) Equity shares of Rs.10/-
(Rupees Ten) each vide Ordinary Resolution passed in the Extra-ordinary meeting of
shareholders of the Company dated 29.01.2021.

During the financial year 2020-2021, Company has issued and allotted 878 Equity Shares
having face value of INR 10/- each, at a premium of INR 1,13,904/- each to Mega Town
Planners Private Limited vide Board Resolution dated 26.03.2021. Post issued and paid up
capital of the Company after taking into consideration the above allotment stands at 10,878
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed M/s. Manish & Associates, a Firm of Company Secretaries in practice to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2020-21.



Observations by secretarial Auditor

Management Reply

1.

Whereas in terms of the provisions of
Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company was required to have certain Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP). The Company
has not appointed any KMP in the Company
in terms of the provisions of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Where as in terms of the provisions of

Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 3 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, the Company was required to
appoint at least one Women Director on the
Board of the Company, the Company could
not comply with the same.

3. Whereas in terms of the provisions of

Regulation 47 and other applicable
regulations, if any, of the SEBI (Listing,
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company is required
to publish financial results in newspaper, the
Company could not comply with the same.

This is to clarify that the management of the
Company was carrying out a discussion regarding
the applicability of Section 149(1), 138 & 203 of
the Companies Act, 2013 on the Company, as the
Company has only its non-convertible debt
securities listed on a recognized stock exchange
and the Company has never touched the statutory
limits prescribed under the respective sections of
the Companies Act, 2013,

Though the Company has its non-convertible debt
securities listed on a recognized stock exchange
but a Company can become a listed Company only
after offering its securities to the public by issuing
prospectus. Public offer is an essential
requirement for getting securities listed on a stock
exchange.

After going through the various articles including
the article of renowned CS Dr. K.R. Chandratre and
after understanding the deep intent of the law,
management of the Company was at a opinion
that the status of the Company should be
“Unlisted”,

Due to the dilemma regarding the status of the
Company, the Company could not complied with
the provisions of Sections 149(1), 138 & 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

4, Whereas in terms of the provisions of

Section 138(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 13 of The Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company was
required to appoint an internal auditor,
however, no such auditor has been
appointed by the Company. In this regard,
the Company has represented that they are
looking for a suitable candidate and shall
comply with the stated provision as soon as
possible.

For the Purpose of Section 138(1) of the Companies

Act, 2013 related to the appointment of internal

auditor for the Company, the management of the

Company is looking for a suitable candidate for the

purpose of conducting the Internal Audit of the

Company. Company ensures the secretarial auditor”
that it will comply with the provisions of section

138(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 as soon as.
possible

5. Whereas in terms of the provision of

Regulation 52 and other applicable
regulations, if any, of the SEBI (Listing,
Obligations and Disclosute Requirements)
Regulation, 2015, the Company is required
to file its financial results to the Stock
Exchange on half yearly basis. The same has
not been filed by the Company

In this Regard, the management of the Company
has represented that due to the prevalent Covid-19
pandemic, Company was not able to file the
financials on the stock exchange timely, however
the Company has assured the earliest filing of.the
same.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

S. N. Dhawan & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, statutory auditors of the Company
having Firm Registration No. N500045 hold office until the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company for the financial year ended 2021-22. The Company has
received a certificate from the statutory auditors to the effect that their re-appointment, if
made, would be within the limits prescribed. The statutory auditors have also confirmed
that they hold a valid certificate issued by the “Peer Review Board” of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

The Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors” Report are self-explanatory
and do not call for any further comments. There are no qualifications or observations or
remarks made by M/s S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants in their Report.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with all the provisions of the secretarial standards during the
year.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of the business of your Company.

-

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year under review, neither any Director of the Company resigned nor any new
Director has been appointed.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to the appointment of
Independent Directors do not apply to our Company.

DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12)
OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL
GOVERNMENT:

The auditors of your Company did not find any act which can be termed as fraud
committed by any one of the Directors or Officers of the Company.



17. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

18.

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or its employees during the
Year under review. No amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public
was outstanding as on the date of Balance Sheet. There are no deposits which are not in
compliance with the requirement of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year
under review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy NA

The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy | NA

The capital investment on energy conservation equipments NA

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The efforts made towards technology absorption NA

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product | NA
development or import substitution

In case of imported technofogy (imported during the last three years NA
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)

The expenditure incurred on research and development NA

Details of Foreign currency transactions are as follows:
a. The company has not earned any income in Foreign Currency during the year. _
b. The company has not incurred any expenditure in Foreign Currency.

19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishment of CSR
Committee and minimum CSR expenditure does not apply to your Company.

20. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD:

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Board of Directors met 13 times. The intervening gap
between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013.

The details of number of meetings attended by each of the directors of the Company are as
follows:

1. 11* May, 2020;

2. 21t July, 2020;

3. 04t August, 2020;

4. 17" August, 2020;

5. 27" November, 2020;

6.17t December, 2020;
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7. 31st December, 2020;
8. 15" January, 2021;
9. 12t February, 2021;
10 08t March, 2021;
11. 20t March, 2021;
12. 22nd March, 2021;
13. 26% March, 2021;

Proper Notices were given and the proceedings were duly recorded on the Minutes of the
meeting and kept at the registered office of the Company.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors
confirm that

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31%t March, 2021,
the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(i) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit and loss
of the Company for that period;

(iii) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(iv)The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(v)The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

-

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: -

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks
followed by coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability
and/or impact of unfortunate events or to maximise the realization of opportunities. The
Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure
which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to
ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined
framework. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation
process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project execution,
event, financial, human, environment and statutory compliance.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has in place, adequate system of internal control to ensure compliance with
policies and procedures. It is being constantly assessed and strengthened with new/
revised standard operating procedures and tighter information Technology controls.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE

There were 14 employees in the Company, however no employee gets remuneration above
the limit prescribed under provisions of Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GURANTEES AND INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION
186:

The Loans and Guarantees given and Investments were made under the provisions of
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and are given under
notes to the financial statements.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-9:

As per MCA Notification dated 05.03.2021 there is an amendment in Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 w.e.f 05.03.2021 pursuant to which the
requirement of attaching the extract of the annual return with the Board's Report in Form
No. MGT.9 has been omitted in Rule 12 of the said rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

As per the Notification No.GSR 464(E) by MCA dated 5 June, 2015, any transaction by a
Private Company with its holding, Subsidiary or associate Company shall not be treated as
Related Party Transactions.

Accordingly, in view of the above notification by MCA, there are no Related Party
Transactions which are covered under section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 during
the FY 2020-2021.

CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY:

There has been no change in the registered office of the Company, during the year under
review,

COST RECORDS

The Company is not covered under the provisions relating to maintenance of cost records
as specified by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Company is committed towards the best corporate practices followed and are in
continuous development of the business for attaining high standards of integrity toactas a

torch bearer to set an example of Absolute Compliance.

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation and sincere
gratitude for the assistance and co-operation received from the financial institutions,

Government authorities, customers, vendors, members, and the Bankers during the year
under review and look forward to their continued co-operation in the years to come.



Your Directors acknowledge the support and co-operation received from the employees,
staff and workers and all those who have helped in the day to day management.

BY AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

For BRIGHT BUILPYECHPRIVATE LIMITED For BRIGHT BUILDTECH PR):‘ATE LIMITED

/0
o
DIRECTOR - P
PRATAP SINGH RATHI JAGDEEP SINGH GILL
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 05195185 DIN: 01599882

DATE: 30.11.2021
PLACE: DELHI
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year thein ended,
and notes to the financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting zolicies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our informauci and according to the explanations given to us, in= aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of ihe Company as at 31 March
2021, and loss, and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinio»

We conducted our audit in a::cordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) spacified unde. Section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statemenis’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI"} togetiher with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We beiigve thai the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attenition to Note 47 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a net loss
of Rs. 12,310.54 lakhs during the year ended 31 March, 2021 and it has accumulated losses of Rs. 11,194.59
lakhs, which has resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. As stated in the said note,
these events or conditions, indicaie that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the financial statements of the Company have
been prepared on a going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said note. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

3.0, Ohawan & CO LLP |3 registered wath ionlied abiity with weniiicatdon nuriber A4H-1125 and its iegisiered oifles |5 108, Mazrcaniile House, 15, Kasiurba Gandhi Marg,
Maw Dl 110001, Indiz



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Director’'s Report, but does not include the financial statemenis and our auditor's report thereon. The Director's
report is expected to be made available o us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Ii, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financiai statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequzte internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the &ccounting records, relevant to {he preparation and presentation of the financia! statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicabie, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.




s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are aiso responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the refated disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the dafe of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
imay cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements reprasent the underlying transactions and events in & manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, tive planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Qrder"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained ali the.information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those ooks.

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2021 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,; in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
1o the explanations given to us, the Company being a prlvate company Section 197 of the Act related to the
managerial remuneration not applicable. AN 2




(h} With respect to the other matters o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our inforration and according
to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. — Refer
Note 35(d).

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.- Refer Note 35 (e).

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.- Refer Note 35 (c).

For 8.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Ragistration No.: 600050N/N500045

Vinesh Jain 2 R
Partner
Membership No.: 087701
UDIN No.: 21087701AAAAJQ2495 ==

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 November,2021



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report

of even date)

I.

vi.

vil.

In respect of its property, plant and equipment:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets comprising of property, plant and equipment.

b. The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the previous year by the
Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provided
for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

€. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the
company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of ‘fixed assets’). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (i) (¢) of the order are not applicable.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the nature
of inventory, the physical verification by way of verification of title deeds, site visits by the Management and
certification of extent of work completion by competent persons, are at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physicai verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loan to a
company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013;

a. The loan have been given interest free to the Company (2 No’'s amounting 0 Rs. 1,150.26 lakhs
covered under Section 189 of Companies Act, 2013. Hence, in our opinion the terms and conditions
o grant of such loans are, prima facie, prejudicial to the company’s interest,

b. Thaloans are repayable on ¢emand.
¢. There are no overdue amount i respect of loans granted to such company.

In cur opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 185. The Company is engaqed in the business of real estate development,
which has been classified as infrastructural facilittes as per Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the company and hence
the provisions of the clause 3(iv) of the Order, in respect of Section 186, are not applicable on the Company.

According to the information and explanations given io us, The Company has not accepted any deposits
during ihe year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at 31 March, 2021 and at the beginning of
the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not specified
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s
products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. There have been significant delays in deposit of undisputed statutory dues in respect of Income tax,
and Goods and Service Tax (‘'GST'), Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities. Further, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income-tax,
goods and services tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March, 2021 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. We are informed that the
Company’s operations during the year, did not give rise to any liability for provident fund, employee’s
state insurance and customs duty. -




b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues outstanding in respect of income-
tax which have not been deposited on account of dispute is as follows:

Name of Statute  Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where
dues {Rs./Lakhs) paid under  which the dispute is
protest amount pending
(Rs.J/Lakhs) relates
Income tax Income 94.55 - 2015-16 Comrmissioner
act, 1961 tax of Income Tax
(Appeals)

There are no dues of goods and services tax, custom and cess as at 31 March 2021, on account of
dispute.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of any dues to bank during the year. The Company has not taken any borrowings
from financial institutions. The Company has defauited in repayment of government dues and repayment
of dues to debenture-holders as shown below:

" Parsticulars Amount of default as Period of default Remarks
on 31 March 2021 (in days}
{Rs./Lakhs)
Government Dues* 443.21 1355
47117 1171
263.69 1118
954.56 936
2,132.63

1% Non-Convertible
debenturgs® 4,500 182

There is interest (including penal interest) of Rs 2,528.80 lakhs which is also payable as on 31 March 2021.

*The Company has applied for re-schedulement of government dues with Department of Town and Couniry
Planning, Haryana (DTCP), which has been approved subsequent to year ended 31 March 2021 so the
above said defauits stands rectified.

#*The Company has paid the amount subsequent to year end in June 2021,

ix. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the CARQ 2016 Order is not applicable.

x.  To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year.

xi. The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Schedule V to the Act do not apply to the Company.
xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3{xii} of the CARO 2018 is not

applicable.

xiii. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, whergapplicable, for all transactions with the related




parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934.

For 8. N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 000050N/N500045)

Vinesh Jain | Gurugram
Partner \ '

Membership No. 087701
UDIN: 21087701 AAAAJQ2495

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 November 2021



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of BRIGHT
BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED (*the Company”} as of 31 March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Infernal Financial Controls

2. The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internat financial controls based
on the internal control with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financia! Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company’s business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and deemed to be prescribed under section
143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an auait
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Naote require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plsn and perform the audit to obtain reasonable asstrance about
whether adequate internal financial controls witr reference to the financial statements were established and
maintain=d and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4, Our audit irvolves performing procedures to obtain audit eviience about the adequacy of the internal financiai
controls with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements is a process designed to
provide reascnable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements
7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrels with reference to the financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 'prgjeCt_j\Dﬁ_s..pf any evaluation of the internal financial
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controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system with
reference fo the financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control with reference to the financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India,.

For 8.N. Dhawan & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm%istration No.: 000050N/N500045

\#\U gl .'.._"-_\__
Vihesh Jain o A

Partner
Membership No.: 087701 it
UDIN: 21087701AAAAJQ2495 -

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 November,2021



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CiN - 145201 DL2006PTC 146221
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 20214

Note No. As at As at
31 March, 2621 31 March, 2620
Rs. f Lakh Rs. ! Laki
Assets
1 Ror-current assets
a Froperty, plant and squipment 3 31.85 375
B Financial agsets
L. Mon-current investmsents 4 - 11,746.73
n, Other financial azsets 5 1,263.28 8,931,417
2. Income tax assets (nel) g 161.34 147,26
d. Other non current asseis £ 472.91 472 91
1,929.138 21,334.42
2 Current assets
a, Inveriories 8 37,158.72 36,246.75
b Financial assets
i Current Investments 4 11,745.73 -
ii. Trade receivables " 152.94 1.045 60
i, Cash and cash equivaients i2 223.08 21442
iv. Other bank balances i3 4,145,500 4,314 48
v, Loan 7 1,475.52 1.075.33
c. Other current assets & 1,276.60 1.652.04
56,175.08 44,548.02
Total assets 58,108.26 £5,682.44
Equity and Habiities
1 Equsity
a. Equity share capital 14 1.08 1.39
b. Other equity 15 {10,194.68) 1,115.85
Total equity (10,193.5%} 1,116.85
2 Liabilities
Hon-current llabilities
a. Financial liabifities
i. Borrowings k[ 24,866.69 2062478
b. Deferred tax lisbilties 10 - -
24,866.65 20,624.76
Current Babilities
a. Financizal iiabiities
. Currerd maturities of long ferm debt 17 3,858.56 569658
i, Borrowings 16 14,508.63 15,450.24
iii. Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micio enterprises and 18 26,39 41.77
small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditars other than 148 1,669.94 1,857 .49
micro enterprises and small enterprises
tv. Other financial liabilities 19 7.930.16 7,408 24
b, Other current liabilities 20 15,443.48 1388543
¢. Current tax liabilities 21 - -
43.435.16 44,140.73
Total liabitities 68,301.85 64,765.49
Total equity and fabilitles 58,108.28 65,882.44

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For 3. N. Dhawan & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dirett ] / }
Chartered Accountants Bright Buildtech Private Limited l 3 { X~
Fir's Registration No. 000050N/N500045 7 j ] L o

vihesh Jain arf Jagdeep Singh Gilt “Pratap SIngh Rathi
Partner gl vminram \ Director Director

Membership Mo. 087701 || s\ R & DIN: 01590882 DIN: D5195185

Place: i_'.‘. 4 ERATE TN Place: AR e Piace: , AT T
Date: - Dater - ., DAl v ke

Pl N IR



BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2021

Note Year ended Year endad
No. 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2026
Rs. ! Lakh Rs. f Lakh
i Revenus fiom oparaticns 21 - 4,524 37
I Other incoms 22 253,58 3,818,089
i Total income (1+1%} 258.68 3,840.36
W Expenses
a. Costof landf developroent rghis 23 - £24.64
b. Ernployee bensfits axpenss 24 4751 19.42
e Finance costs 25 465357 3,296 66
4. Depreciation and amoriisation sxpanse 26 8.90 314
e. Other expensas 27 16740 17830
Total expenses {IV) 4,901.28 7,423.25
Y Profitfiboss) before tax and exceptional items{lll-Iv) {4,642.7G) 1417141
Vi Exceptional fterm 28 {7.667.54) -
VIl Profitf (Loss) before tax (V-VI) {12,310.54} 1,417.11
VI Tax expense
& Cusrent tax 20 - -
b. Deferred tax 29 - {243 44}
- (343,44}
1% Profit{Loss) for the year (VII-Vi) {12,310.54) 1.750.55
IX  Other comprehensive income
lters that will not be reciassified to proft or loss
i Other comprehensive incoms {net of tax) - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
X Total comprehensive incomea for the year (VHIIX) {12,310.54) 1,760.55
X4 Earning per equity share
Eouity shares of face value Rs. 10 each
Basic {Rs. Per shara) 30 {1,22,927.88) 16050
Diluted {Ra. Par share} 30 {1,22 927 93} 17.605.50
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial siatements 1
In terms of our report attached : [ ;) V)
For . N. Dhawan & CG LLP For and on hehalf of the Board of qwecjio 10 E
Charfered Acsountants Bright Buildtech Private Limited |/ J (V7
Fimi's Registration No. J00050N/NSQ0045 .77 l’
Pl
\bﬂﬁsh Jain oy N Jagdeep Singh Gill  Pratap Singh Rathi
Partner . [ | Director Uirector
Mamibarship No. 087761 ugram Tl DIN: 01599882 DIN: 05195185
Place: (7o L /. 7 Place: ( Place: v <
Date: N W Dater . _ o DAL 50 i gesmhan o




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CiN - L452010L2006P T 146221

STANDALOME STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Rs./ Lakh Rs. fLakh
A, Casht flow from operatlng activities
ProfiifiLoss) bhefore fax {12,310.54) 141701
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expense 8.20 3.14
interest incorne {253.08) (213251
3ain on settiement of advances - {1,783.68)
Balancas written Back - -
Provigion for donbtful debts - 65231
Adiowance for expected credil loss 7.067.84
Finance cost 4,589.57 5,296.66
{204.29) 3,463.23
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for {increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventorles {91298} {1,134.01)
Trade recseivables 892.06 4712
Crther non-curmant assets - 33580
Other current assets 37544 B42,08
Loan (400,12} {1,075.33)
Other non-cument financiat agsets 0.08 12,305.54
Adjustinents for increases f {decrease) in operating liabifities:
Trade payables (202.93) 884,75
Other current liabilities 1,758.05 {1,184.78}
Cash generated from/ {used in) operating activities 1,305.21 14,190,17
licome taves paid (net} {13.48) {63,643
Net cash generated from/ {used in) operating actlvities 1,294.73 14,126.52
B. Cash fiow from investing activities
Property, Plant & Equipments (2.80} (36.81}
Decrease /{increase) in other bank balances 168.98 {3.975.14)
Interest recetved 258.08 758.37
Sale of investrents in Subsidiary 1.00 -
Net cash generated fromf{used in} investing activities 425.24 {3,253 58)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of iong term borrowings {1,285.70) (8,500.00)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,132.11 3,479.84
Proceeds from shott lerm borrowings (943.81) -
Repayment of short term borrowings - {3,827.32}
Proceeds from issue of share capital 1,000, 00 -
Finance Cost {1,811.13) {1,.813.74)
Net cash generated from/{used in) financing activitles (1,708.33) (10,661.22)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 3.64 211.72
Cash and cash eguivalents al the beginning of the year 214 42 2.70
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year {refer note 12) 223.06 214.42

Figures in brackets indicate cash ouffiow,

See accompanying nofes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report aitached

For 8. N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Charterad Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 000050N/N50G045

Parmer

Membership No. 087701

Place: -

Date:

i
i

Lo v,

Bright Buildfoch Private Limited | 1°

.-’/4 s
Jagdeep Singh Gil

Director

G A N\ Piace:

DIN: 015896882

. Date:

"

-
-

Pratap Singlt Rathi
Director
DiIN: 05185185

Place: | yn ot

& pdevwe e s

I) lﬂ, .: _

For and on behalf of the Board of Dirqirlo?t
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BRIGHT BUILETECH PRIVATE LIMITED
N - U45201DL2G06PTC 145221
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2621

A. Equity ehare capital

Equity share: of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance as al 1 April 2016

tssue af equily share capitat
Balance as at 31 March, 2020
Issu of quity share capital
Balance as al 31 March, 2021

B. Other equity

BGaltance as at 1 Apri, 201%

ProfitfLoss) for the year
Ofher comprehensive income for ihe year, net of incomes

lax

Balance as at 3t March, 2020

ProfitiLoss) for the vear

Prerium on issue of shares

Oiher comprehensive income for the year, net of income

ax

Balance as at 31 March, 2021

Sea accompanying nofes fonming parl of the financial stalements

In terms of our report attached
For 5. M, Dhawan & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firsi's Registralion Mo, A0005CNNS00045

Vinesh Jain

Partner

-

Membership No. 067701

Place:
Data:

Lrparants W

%
S0 Mamgteply

L

No. of shares iRs. [ Lakh
16,000 1.09
10,000 1.0
£73 0.09
190,878 1.09
Retained Securities oo °|: "‘:,e' Total
Garnings prefmium Bm;?-;:;g fve ota
Rs. f Lakh Rs. ! Lakh Rs. ! Lakh Rsg. /Lakh
(644.60) - (644,60}
1,760.56 - 1,760,655
1,115.95 - 1.115.95
{12,210.54) - (12,310.54)
G99 51 998,91
(1,194.59) 999.81 {16,194.58)
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors [
Brigght Buildtech Private Limited ] { J
— \‘3 LE.»"
e
Jagdesp Singh Gill Pratap Singh Rathi
Director Dirgclor
DiM: 01599882 DIN: 05185185
Place: L :.f)fill{.t b, C‘LL»\U\ =3
Dzt

Date 30 novewdiaq, 2024
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U452041D1.2006PTC 146221

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mote:

{ii.

tnvestments
Mon-current

a. Investments in equity of subsidiaries
- Unquoted, carried at cost

i. Solace Projects Private Limiied {zee note i)
{Nil {As at 31 March, 2020 - 10,000} squity shares of Rs 10
gach fully paid up)

4. nvestment in debentires - at amortised cost
- unsecured
L 0.01% Optionally convertible debentures (‘OCDHY
- Lotus Greens Construstions Prvate Limited

it. 15.00% Non convertibie debenturas ('NCD') {See notes
Betow}
- Lotus Greens Constructions Private Limited

Current

a, invesiment in debentures - at amortised cosi
- unsacured

L 0.07% Optionally convertible debarmures ('OCHY
- Lotus Greens Constructions Private Limited

i 15.00% Mon convertible debentures ('NCD'} {See notes
betow)
- Lotus Greens Constructions Private Limited

. The interest on NCD shall not be dus and pavable Hill the debenture

liabiiities redesmed and any other rights and claims that the hew
debenture holders in Lotus Greens Constructions Private timited
(New Debentures’) may now or hereafter have against any
obligator, in connection the new debenutres

During the previous year, the Company has entered into Debanture
Subscription amendment agreement with Lotus Green Contructions
Private t imited wherein the redemption date of 15% Mon convertible
debentures hiave been revised from 3 August 2019 to 31 August
2023

During the current year company has sold the investment
in subsidiary Solace Projects Private Limited .

iv. Subsegquent o year ended 31 March 2021 the company has sold

the investment in Optionally convertible debentures ('OCD') and
Non convertibie debentures (NCD'} . Accordingly invesiment is
classified as current investrents. Refer note 38 and 39 to the
fnancial statemenis,

As at As at
31 March, 202 31 March, 2020
Re./Lakh Rs./Lakh

- 1.00

- 1.08

] 381174

- £,133.99

- 11,748.73

- 11,746.73
361174 -
£,133.98 .
11,745.73 .

3 ’{_/
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

CiN - U45201DL2066PTC 146221

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

53 Other financial asget

Non-cyrrent

a. Security deposits

b, Acciued interesi oh investments (refer note 4 38 and 39)
Lass: Allowance for expected credii loss

& Other assets

1.

7 Loan

a,
b.

Non-current

a. Advance for tang

Current

a. Advances {0 suppliers
b, Advances to Employees

c. Prepaymenis

d. Prepaid expanses

Loan and advance o related parties

Loan and advance 10 others

i Unsecured, considered good

i Unsecurad, considered doubtful

Less: Allowances for doubtful advances {expected

credit loss allowances)

8 leventories
{lower of cost and net realisable value)

a
b.
<.

Land

Developrment rights {refer note 36)

Construction work in progress {refer note 28)

9.01 .06
892211 B,922.11
{7,667 84} -
1,263.28 8,931.47
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March, 2620
Rs.{Lakh Rs. f Lakh
472.91 472.91
472.91 472,91
1,250.93 1,850.35
.45 0.45
- 1.24
2522 -
1,276.60 1,682.04
8383 83.83
1,391,680 991.50
629.20 =
2,02089 29150
(620.20) -
1,476.52 1,076.33
50.63 B50.63
6,666.74 5,696.74
30,402.36 29,439.33
37.159.73 38,246.75




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALOME FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2020
Rs. ! Lakh Rs. { Lakh
9 Income tax asseis (net)
Tax refnd réceivables 161.34 147 .86
61.34 147.36

10 Dweforrad tax lisbilites | {Assets)

The Company has adopted Indisn Accounting Standard (AS) 12 on "lncome taxes™ . Based on prdence, as at 31st March 2021, no defemad tax gssal
has been oreated on ecount of losses. Further, due lo uiceriainty of fulure laxabie mncome, defered fax assets have not bean recognised.




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

CiN - U45201DL2086PTC 146221
MNOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1%

12

13

Trade receivables
a. Unsecured, considerad good
b, Ursecurad, considerad doubiful

Less: Alowances for doubtful debits (expecied
cradif loss sllowances)
Cash and cash equivatants
a. Cashin hang
b. Balances with banks
- ON cuirernit accounts
Qther bank halances

3. Balance with banks
- In fixad daposits accouni (see note below)

Mote:

As at As at
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Res. / Lakh Rs. / Lakh

15294 1,045,060

3311 862,31

186.05 1.707.31
33,91 562,31

152.9¢ 1.045.00

.03 0.03
223.03 21439
223.06 214,42

4,145 50 4,314 .48
4,145.5¢ 4,314.48

Deposit with banks having maturity for more than 3 ronths but less than 12 monihs are the deposits lving with
bariks against bank guarantaes issuad by the bank o various goverament authorities.




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 Equity share capltal

As at As at
31 March,2021 31 March, 2020
— No. of shares Rs.JLakh No. of shares Rs. / Lakh
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,00.50.000 1,005 50,000 5.00
1,00,50,000 1,005 50,000 5.00
Issued, subscribed and fully pald up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 10,878 1.09 10,000 1.00
10,878 1.09 10,000 1.00
a. Movement In share capital As at Year ended
Eaul 31 March,2021 31 March, 2020
quity shares No. of shares Rs./Lakh No. of shares Rs./ Lakh
Balance as at the beginning of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Add: Increase during the year 878 0.09 B :
Balance as at the end of the year 10,878 1.09 10,000 1.00

b. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The company has equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder ofe

share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend propose

to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of Company, the holders of equity
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution w
shareholders. During the year,
at 31 March, 2020 Rs. Nil).

¢. Shares held by Holding Company
As at

31 March, 2021
No of Shares

Mega Town Planners Private Limited ( formerly 10,878

known as Three C Town Planners Private

quity shares is entitled to one vote per
d by the Board of Directors is subject

shares will be entilled to receive remaining assets of the company
ill be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions 1o equity shareholders Is Rs. Nil (as

As at
31 March, 2020
No. of shares

10,000

————————

Limited )
10,878 10,000
d. Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the Company
Year ended Year ended
Name of shareholder 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
No of shares %, holding No of shares % holding
0.00%
Mega Town Planners Private Limited (formerly 10878 100.00% 10,000 100.00
known as Three C Town Planners Privale

Limited )

. On 2 September, 2019, the name of the Holding Company has bee
Mega Town Planners Private Limited.

n changed fom Three C Town Planne

rs Private Limited to




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2008PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 Other equity
a. Retained sarnings

b. Securities premium
¢.  Other comprehensive income

Cther equity consist of the following
i. Retained earnlngs
Balance at the beginnning of year

Profit/(Loss} for the year

ii. Securitles premium
Batance at the beginnning of year
Premium on issue of shares

Note:

Debenture redemption reserve has not been created during the vear.

77

As at
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Rs. / Lakh Rs. f Lakh

(11,194.59) 1,115.95
999.91 =
{10,194.68) 1,115.95
1,115.85 (644.60)
(12,310.54) 1,760.55
{11.194.59) 1,115.95

889.91 -
999,91 .

Ilr)
QF gt Buildieciy Pt |Kid.
o ) o




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL.2006PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Rs. / Lakh Rs. / Lakh
16 Borrowings
l. Non-current borrowings
2. 1% Non Convertible Debentures ('NCD'} (see nots "' below) 12,074.44 10,564.71
-Unsgecured
b. 1% Non Convertibie Debentures ({NCD'} (see note 'I' below) £.533.58 7.485.79
-Unsecured
20,608.02 18,050.50
¢. Loans fom banks {ses note 'II' and 'V'helow)
- Secured- at amortisad cost
i. Yas Bank Limited 3,858.56 4,790,908
3,858.56 4,790.98
d. Loan from related party (see note 'ill' below) 4,258.67 3,479.84
4,258.67 3,479.84
Less: Amount disciosed under 'Current maturities of long term 3,858.56 5,696.56
debt’ (see note 17)
24.866.69 20,624.76
. Current borrowings
Unsecured - at amortised cost
a. Deferred payments (refer note 'V below) 4,661.43 5161.43
{including accrued interast)
h. Loans and advances from refated pariies 575.35 1,803.95
¢. Loans and advances from others 9,269.85 8,384.85
14,506.63 15,450.24

Notes:
i. Details of NCD issued by the Company

a. Rate of interest:
f. 1% interest on NCD's shall accrue on 31 March every year and shall be paid subject to availability of distributable profits.

b. Terms and conditions

i. 215 no's {as at 31 March, 2020 215 no's), 1% Unsecured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs 100 Jakhs each are
cutstanding towards Clear Horizon Investments Pie. Ltd {lender).

ii. 150 no's {as at 31 March, 2020 150 no's), 1% Rated, Listed, Unsecured, Redeemabie, Cumulative Non-Convertible Debentures {(NCDs)
of Rs 100 lakhs each are outstanding towards Clear Horizon Investments Pte. Lid (lender}

#i. During the previous year, the Company has entered inte an amendment agreement with lender uader which the Company has repaid
Rs. 8500 lakhs in October 2019 and the lender has agreed to waive off Rs. 3000 lakhs.

iv. Qut of the remaining debeniures of Rs. 25,000 lakhs, Rs. 4,500 jakhs have {o be paid in September 2020 and balance debentures of
Rs. 20,500 lakhs shall be redeemed on 1 September, 2023 unless such date is extended thereafter with mutual written agreement
between the Company and the investor. However, the company has failed to repay the installment due in Septermber 2020 which is
subsquently paid on 14 June 2021,

¢. The financial laibilties are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by faking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

d. The EiR amenrisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or
toss.

/

e. The Company shall repay afong with principal distributable surpius avaifable with the Company as on the date of redemptij‘
4
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f. There are some conditions based on the terms and conditions of the debtentures with respect (o the distributabie profit the detaiis are as
foliows:

- Firsily toward coupon inferest on NCD due,

- then toward part redumption of NCD upto 95% of face value

- balance shall be considered as amount for base case investor entitlement or adjusted investor entitlement {redemption premium) after
taking into account payments aiready made to the investor less amount equal to 5% of the face value of the NCD

- balance to full redemption of the face value of NCD.
Il. Loans from banks

a. Terms and conditions

i. Term Loan, & finance facility is provided by the Yes Bank Limited, Yes Bank Limited has provided a loan of Rs. 16,770.00 Lakh (as at
31 March, 2020 Rs. 16,770.00 Lakh), repayable in 14 equal quarterly instaliments after moratorium period of 12 months starting from 20
August, 2015 and iast installment falling due on 31 COclober, 2019,

Buring the previous year , the loan has been rescheduled and after the reschedulement, the last instaliment date is falling due on 31
October, 2021.

b. Rate of interest:
Interest of 14.35% per annum (4.65% + Yes Bank one year MCLR {marginal cost of lending rate} payable monthly is charged on
‘outstanding borrowings during the year.

¢, Security

L. The foan is secured by registered motgage of the immovable project assets and development rights of the project (Woodview
Residencies)

ii. Exclusive charge on the movable fixed assets and current assets including receivables (sold/ unsoid) of the project and Escrow of all
receivables of project.

ifi. Persenal guarantee of Mr. Nirmal Singh, Mr. Pratap Sigh Rathi and Mr. Ajay Kumar

iv. Corporate guarantee of Mega Town Planners Private Limited, Ace Landcraft LLP and Ace Mega Structures Private Limited .

d. Details of terms of repayment in respect of the secured loans

Amount Amount
Particluars 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Rs./ Lakhs Rs./ Lakhs
Upto 1 year 3.858.56 1,197.41
1o 3 years - 3,593.57

310 5 years = -
More than 5 years - R

il.  Loan from related parties

a. Terms and conditions
During the previous year, Ace Mega Structure Private Limited {related party) has obtainad loan from Yes bank which has been passed on
by the related party to the Company, repayable in 12 equal quarterly installmenis after moratorium period of 26 months starting from 18
July, 2022 and last instaliment falling due on 17 July , 2025. During the current year Rs. 520.16 lakhs amount have been transferred from
trade payable as per the contractual arangement with the party.

b. Rate of interest

interest of 11.8 % per annum {2.80% + Yes Bank one year MCLR (marginal cost of lending rate) payable monthly is charged on
‘putstanding borrowings during the year.




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

¢. Security
I Exciusive charge on land and building of "Woodview Residencies’ project.

ii. Extlusive charge on the movable fixed assets and current assets meluding receivables (sold/ unsold) of the project and Escrow of all
raceivables of project.

iii. Personal guarantee of Mr. Pratap Sigh Rathi and Mr. Ajay Kumar.

iv. Comporate guarantee of the Company and Ace Landerafi LLP,

d. Details of terms of repayment in respect of the securad loans

Amount Amount
Particulars 3 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Rs./ Lakhs Rs./ Lakhs
Upto 1 year - -
110 3 years 3,548.89 869.96
3fo 5 years 709.78 2,318.89
More than & years - 289,99

V. a. During the Financial year 2020-21, Yes Bank has approved moratorium on interest due for the period April 2020 to August 2020
{(moratorium pericd) on secwed joan and the same has been converted into additional loan amounting to Rs. 353.28 on the loan taken from
yes bank and 258.67 lakhs on ioan faken from Ace Mega Structure Private Limited (related party}.

V. Thereis delay in payment of govenment dues and interest on government dues the outstanding amount as at 21 March, 2021 is as foilows:

Period of Default (in days) Principal Amount *
Rs./ Lakhs
1355 443 21
1171 471.17
118 263.69
934 954,56
Total 213263

" There is interest (including penal interest) of Rs 2,528.80 lakhs which is also payabie as on 31 March 2021,
The Land license of the project land is the name of Orris Infrastrucure Private Limited, which enter in an arrangement with Deparfment Town

and Couniry Planning (DTCP") , Government of Haryana for deferrment of liabilties with respect to government dues, the share of the
Company in the dues and the which is now repayabie in four installment starting from January 2022 to ending on July 2623,

SR ¢ it Builatech FVL b
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As af
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

Rs. ! Lakh Rs. / Lakh
17 Current maturities of long term debt

2. Curreni maturities of long term debt 3,858.56 5,696.55

{For security ¢clause and term of repayment see note 16)
3,858.56 5,696.56

18 Trade payables

a. - tofal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 26.39 41,77
{see note helow)

b. - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 1,669.94 1,857.48
enterprises

1,686.33 1,899.26

Notes:

i The above amount of trade payables also inciudes amount payable to
its related parties (refer note 33).

. The average credit pericd for purchase of certain goods and services - -
are from 7 to 16 days. No interest is chargeable on trade payables.

ii. The disclosure of the amount outstanding to micro entemprises - -
and small enterprises are as follows:

a. the principal amount and the interest due thereon (fo be shown separately) 26.39 4177
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting year

b. the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 aiong - -
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year:

¢. the amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal 2.92 -
has been paid but interast under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid)

d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 2.92 -
of accounting vear

@, The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding - -
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information coliected by
the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
31 March, 2021 21 March, 2020
Rs. / Lakh Rs./ Lakh
1% Other financial liabilltles
&  Gurrent
i interest accrued
- on Non Convertibie Debentures (NCDY 7.830.28 7.048.30
- on borrowings from bank 46.04 80.35
- on borrowings from relaled parties 50,92 279.59
- oh trade payahle (refer note 18) 2,92 -
7,930.16 7.409.24
20 Other current liabilities
a. Advances from customers 11,903.59 11,803.59
b.  Advance for sale of land 345362 1,687.94
¢.  Statutory dues 86.27 63.80
15,443.48 13,685.43
N
c Suildtech fih
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Rs. / Lakh Rs. [ Lakh
21 Reventie from operations
a. Revenue from sale of land - 492437
- 4,924.37
22 Other income
a. interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as fair
value through profit or ioss;
- from banks on deposits 257.26 71.96
- on debentures 0.30 1,373.94
- other advances - 686.41
b. Interest on income tax refund 0.62 -
¢. Gain on settlement of advances - 1,783.68
258.68 3,915.99
23 Cost of land! development rights
a. Plots and land - 924 64
- 924.64
24 Employee benefits expense
i Salaries and wages 41.21 19.07
i, Staff welfare expense 6.30 0.35
47.51 19.42
25 Finance costs
a. Interest cosis
i. Interest on debenture 3.358.77 3,194.24
ii. Interest on borrowing 1,294 .18 1,824.80
ii. Other finance cost - 183.31
iv. Interest on Statwtory dues 15.80 8.03
v. Interest on refund to customer 16.80 86.28
vi. Interest on delayed payment to MSMEs 2.82 -
4,6898.57 5,296.66
26 Depreciation and amortisation expense
a. Depreciation of property, ptant and equipment 6.90 3.14
6.90 3.14
( BL S ik
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CIN - U45201DL2006PTC 146221

NCTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27

28

Other expenses
a. Rates and taxes 36.42 311.10
b. Bank charges 2018 31.08
¢. Travelling & Conveyances 223 .18
d. Legal and professional 75.25 48 55
e. Payments to auditors (see nofe below) 3.50 3.50
f. Business proimotion - 110.20
g. Provision for doubtful debis and advances - 862.31
h. Miscellaneous expenses 18.82 14.38
157.40 1,179.39
Note:
Payment made te auditors comprises: (excluding GST)
i. Statutory audit fee's 3.50 3.50
3.50 3.50
Exceptional ltems
Aliowance for expected credit loss {see note 39) (loss) {7,667.84} -
{7,667.84) -
Ve
A7
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CiN - U45201DL2008PTC 146221

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29

30

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Rs. f Lakh Rs. f Lakh
lncome taxes
Current tax
For currant year = -
MAT credit = -
Deferred tax
in respect of the current year - {343.44)
- {343.44)
Incoms tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss - {343.44)
Other comprehensive income section
Incorme tax relating fo items that will not be reclassifisd to profit or loss - -
- {343.44)
Reconcilation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by prevailing
income tax rate
Profit/{loss) before tax {12,210.54) 1,417.11
income tax rate (Current year MAT rate 17.16%, 2517% 17.47%
Previous year income tax rate 26%)
Calculated income tax expense {3,098.32) 247 57
Adjustment of Ind AS opening adjutments and others - {247 .57}
De-recognition of Deferred tax on prudence 3,088.32 343.44
Income tax expense - 343.44
Earning per share
Net profit atiributable to the shareholders {12,310.54; 1,760.55
Weighted average number of outstanding equity shares during the year 10,014 10,600
Basic sarning per shase {1,22,027 98) 17.605.50
{1,22,927.98) 17,605.50

Diluted earning per share
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31 Flnaneial instruments
i. Capital Management

Tne Company's objectives when managing capital are o

a. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concem, so that they can continue to provide retuing for shareholders anc benefiis

for other stakeholders, and
b mainia an oplimal capital structure {0 reduce the cost of capital.

The capital struchure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and bank Lalances) and total equity of the

Sampany.

The Company is not subjeci o any externally imposed capital requireraents.

Consistent with ofhers in the indusiry, the Company moniters capital on the basis of the foliowing gearing ratio)

et debt {fotal borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total ‘equity’ {(@s shown in the balance shest),

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows:

As at As at
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Rs. /Lakh Rs. [ Lakh
Debt 4323188 44,771.56
Cash and Bank bajances (4,363.56) {4,528.90)
Net dekt 38,863.32 37,242.66
Total Equity {10,193.59) 1.115.85
Met debt o equity ratio (%) -381.25% 3334.32%
ii. Categories of financial Instruments
Financial assets
Measured at fair value through profit or loss - -
Measured at cost
Financial assets
a. Non-current investments 4 - 1174873
b. Cuwrrent inveshnenis 4 11,745 73 -
Measured at amortised cost
Financiat assets
2. Cashand cash equivalkents 12 22308 214,42
b, Other bank balances 13 4,145.50 4,314,485
¢ Loans 7 1,475.52 1,075.33
d. Trade receivables 11 152,94 1,045 00
2. Other non-current financial assets 5 1,263.28 B8.8931.17
Financial liabilities
& Borrowings
i Long term borrowings 16 24, 856.69 2082476
it. Current maturities of long term bonowings 17 3,858.56 5,696.56
iii. Short term borrowings 18 14,506,63 15,450.24
b. Trade payables 18 1,6586.33 1,8280.26
¢. Other financial libailiies
- Mon current 19 - -
19 793016 7409 24

- Current

Measured at fair vatue through other comprehensive income

The fair value hierachy is based on inputs {o valuation techniques that are used to measure fair vaiue that are sither observable or

unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

measurement dafe,

directly or indirectly; and
- Level 3inputs are uncbservable inputs for the asset or liability,

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {(unadjusied) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Levet 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

For financial assets and liabilities included in Leve! 3 of fafr value hierachy have been valued using the cost approach 1o amive at their

fair value.

The Company does not have any assets and liabiliies which need to categorie as ‘fabr value through profit and loss' and 'fair vaiue

through other comprehensive income'

For Brighi Buildtech Py L"-_'I.'( :
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2006PTC146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iii. Financial risk management objectives

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to interest rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact
the falr value of its financial instruments.

The Company has 2 risk management poficy which nat only covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks associated with ihe
nancial assets andliabilities stich as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the board of
direciors. The risk managemeant framework aims to-

- Create a stable business planning epvironment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate Sustuations on the Company's
Busingss pian

- Achigve greater prediciability to earnings by determirting the financial vaiue of the expecied eamings in advance

a. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of any ioss in future eamings, in realizable fair vaiues or i future cash flows that may result from a change in
the price of a financial inskument, The value of 2 financial instrumant may change as a result of changes in the interest rates and
other market changes. Future specific market moverents cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

Foreign cterrency risk management

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit and loss and &juity,
where any transaclion references more than one currency or where asselsliabiliies are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency

As the Company has not transaciion in currecy other than domestic currency, the Company is not expesed to foreign currency
risk.

i. Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is measwied by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any movament in the
reference rates could have an impact on the Company's cash flows as well as cosis.

The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of ifs interast bearing liabilties. The Company's interest rate
exposyre is mainly related 1o debt obligations. Also, the Company regulary review market interest rates compairing with the
applicable rate of interest on liabilities.

As at 31 March, 2021 and 31 March, 2020, financial liability of Rs. 8,117.23 Lakhs and Rs. 8.270.82 Lakhs, respectively, was
subject to variable interest rates. Increasefdecrease of 100 basis points in interest rates 3t the balance sheet date would resuif
in decreasefincrease in profit(loss) before tax of Rs, 81.17 Lakhs and Re. §2.71 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March, 2021
and 31 March, 2020, respectively.

The modef assumes that interest rate changes are instantansous parallel shifts in the yield curve. Although some assets and
liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to re-pricing, these may not react correspondtingly to changes in market
interest rates. Also, the inferesi rates on some types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate with changes in market interest
rates, while interest ratos on other types of asseis may change with a lag.

The risk estimates provided assume a parailel shift of 100 basis poinis interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation
zlso assumes that the change accurs at the balance shest date and has been caiculated based on risk exposures outstanding
as at that date. The period end balanices are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding dunng the peried

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular fargign currency rates, remain constant,
{Note: The impact is indicated on the profi{loss) before tax basis),

Other price risk

The Company does not have any financial instrumeni which will fluctuate because of changes n market prices {other than
those arising from interest rate risk or currancy risk), hence the Company is not significantly exposed to other price risk.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - 45201 DL2006PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I3, Credit risk smanagement

Cradit risk is the rfsk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual tenms or
obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of defauft and the risk of deterioration of cradiiworihiness 2 weell as
concentration risks,

Credit risk has ahways been managed through monitoring the credit worihiness of customers in the normal course of blisiness,

The Company Lses expected credit loss {ECL") model to assess e impairment loss or gain. The Company USES & pIGvision
mairix 1o compauts the expected credit loss allowance for trade rececivables whick: is based on historical exparience.

Reconciliation of loss alfowance provision

As at As at
31 Maich, 2021 31 March, 2020
Rs. /Lakh Rs. { Lakh
Opening balance 662.31 -
Additional provision made - 662.31
Provision adjusted against the amount wiitien off - -
Clasing prowision B62.31 862,31

The provision for logs allowances of trade receivables have been made by the managément on the evaluaiion of trade
receivables. The management at each reporting period made an assessment on recoverability of balances and on the best
estimate basis the provision for loss allowances have been oreated

. Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk refers to the dsk that the Company cannot meet its financial obfigations. The objective of liquidiity risk managemsant is
1o maintain sufficient liguidity and ensure that lunds are available for use as per requirements. The Company has obtained fund

and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks

The Company aiso constanily monitors funding opions available in the debt and capital markets with a view to mainiaining
mancial flexibility.

During the year the Company generated sufficient cash flow operations to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due

The table below provide detalls regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at

Contractual maturities of flnancial liabilities

lessthan1  1to 5year more than 5 year Totat
year

Rs./Lakh Rs. f Lakh Rs./Lakh Rs. f Lakh
Ag at 31 March 2021
Borrowings 18,365.19 24,366.69 - 43,251.88
Trade payables 1,898.33 - - 1,696.33
Other financial liabilities 7.830.16 - - 7.930.16
As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings 21,146.80 2082476 - 41,771.56
Trade payables 1,806.26 - - 1,809.26
Other tinanciat iabilities 7.409.24 - - 7.409 24

32 Corporate soclal responsibility expenditure

The Company has not meet the conditions of CSR rules, net worth, turnover and net profit nence the provisions of CSR not applicable to

the Comparny,




BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U45201DL2008PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 Related parties

a tist of related parties

vi.

Hate:

i. Subsequent to the year end the Ace Landcraft Realtors LLP is converled into the Company, Ace Landcrafi Realtors Private Limited w.e § 18 Sepiermber, 2021

UWtimate Holding Endity

a.
b.

Ace Landeraft Realtors LLP (since 23 May 2019% (see notein
Lotus Greens LLP (bl 22 May 2019}

Holding Company

a.

Mega Town Planners Private Limited (formerly known as Three C Town Planners Privase Lirnited)

Bubsidiary Company

&

Solace Projects Private Limited

Gompanies under the common control with the company

a

b.
L
d.

Lotus Greens Constructions Private Limited (Hil 22 May 2018)
Lotus Greens Developars Private Limitsd (5l 22 May 2019)
Three C Properties Private Limited (il 22 May 201%)

Zrex Infra Developers Prvate Limited (61 22 ay 2019)

Individuals owning indivect interest in the voting power having control over the company and their relatives with whom
transactions have taken place during the year:

a.

Mirmal Singh {Father of Mr. Harkaran Singh Uppal) {fili 22 May 2019}

Entlties over which individuals mentioned in {v) point above are able to exercise control/significant influence and with
whom transactions have taken place during the year:

B Ao oT@ 0RO

Arena Superstructures Private Limited

Lotus Greens Developers Private Limied (since 23 May 2019}
Three C Properties Private Limited {(since 23 May 2019)

Three C Green Developers Private Limited (1l 22 May 2019)
Piyush IT Solutions Private Limited

Delight Quisourcing Private Limited (il 22 May 2019)

NS Global Private Limited {till 22 May 20719}

Sona Polyesters Private Limited (filf 22 May 2019)

Apricot Buitdeon Private Limited {til 22 May 2019)

Three © Universal Developers Private Limited (bl 22 May 2019)
Rirnrock Shelter LLP

Ace Mega Structures Private Limited (since 23 May 2018)

Acs infracity Developers Private Limited (since 23 May 2019)
Star Landeraft Private Limited (since 23 May 2019)
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SRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - W48201DL2066PTC 146221
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Segment information
The Chief operating decision maker for the purpese of resource aliocation and assessment of segments performance focuses o raal ssiate,

five Company operates in a single business segment. The Company is operating in ndia, which is considered zs single geographical ssgment,
Accordingly, the reporting requirements for ssgment disclosure prescribed by Ind AS 108 are not applicable,

35 Cotmnitmends and contlngencles

& The esimated amount of contads r#maining to be executed on capital amounis and nol proviced for (net of advances) ameount to Rs. il
(s at 31 Maich, 2020 amount to Rs. Hif).

Ir. Vhe Covnpasy has other commitmenis, for puschase of goods ard services and employee benafits in normal course of business

. Thers were ro amounts which wers requirsd to be transferrad to the Investor Educalion and Protectior Fund by the Comparny

d.  Coniingent iakiifties to the extent ot provided for

As at As at
31 March.2021 31 March,2020
Rs.f Lakh Rs.fLakh
Claims agalnst the Company not acknowledged as debt
94 55 -

Intome tax
Customier compkaints pending in court®

"Itk not possible for the company o estimate cashouiflows. To extent to wiich an
outflow of Tund will be required is dependent en the pending resolution of the respeciive

wroceedingsflegal cases and It ks determinable on receipl of judgementidecision pending
with various forumiauthorities/cout,

e. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contiacts for which there were any material foresesable josses,

f. The Company has given corporate guarantes in respect of loan taken by Ate Mega Struciure Private Limited from Yes Bank for Rs.
82,30,000 (Previous year Rs, §2,30,000}.

26 Movement of inveniory:

a. Land and development rights:

As at As at
31 March, 2021 3 March, 2020
Rs. f Lakh Rs. /! Lakh
Opening inventory 7.528.04 7.528.04
Add: Rates and laxes - 168397
tess: Cost of goods sold - (024,64}
Closing inventory 7,528.04 §,757.37
5. Constroctlon work in progress:

Operning inventory 29.489.38 27,583.31
Add; material cost 467.57 T7h4.98
Add: cost of civil and finishing work 51.41 71385
Add: Rates and taxes 288.93 27517
Add: Finance cost - -
Add: Overheads 105.08 161.87
Closing inventory 30,402.36 29.489.38




BRIGHT BULDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
ClH - 345201DL2006PTC 146221
NGOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 The Company entered into a Debentures Pledge Agreement {the ‘Agreemant’) dated December 03, 2014 with Loius Greens Constructions
Private Limited (LG Consiruclion’) and WLEFS Trust Company Limited tthe Debenture trustee’) to secure 4,500 non-sonvertible debenturas of
Rs. 10.00 lakhs each issued by LG Construclions. As per the terms of the agresment, to secure the payments or repaymenis of the said
debentures the Company has pledged its investrient info 90 Non Convertible Debentures and 40 Optionally Convertible Debantures of LG
Constructions,

Furiher, as per the tevms of Subordinalion Agreement dated Decernber 03, 2014 entered with Debenturs frustes, the Company has agreed not
{o claim, demand, receive or otherwiss in respect of Company's debenture investments in LG Consiruction till the time the aforesaid 4,500 nen-
converilile debentures issue by LG construction are pald and dischargad in full,

38 During the pravious year, the Company has enfered inlo Debanture Subscription amendment agresment with Loius Green Contruciions Privats
Limited whersin the redemption date of 15% Non convertile debenturss have been revised from 3 August 2019 to 31 August 2023

The management has assessed the recoveraibiliy of invesimsams i debentures of Lotus Green Construcion Private Limited and sxpects to
recover the amount stated in non current invesiments {refer nots 4}

39 Subsequént to the year ended 31 March, 2021 for the requiremant of funds, the Company has entered nfo Debenture Purchase Agreement on &
June, 2021, as per agreement the Company has sold the 50 rated, unlisted, secured. redesmable, non convertible debentures (NGD') of Rs.
03,000,000 each and 40 Optionally Convertible Debenturss (OGO’ of Rs. 10,000,000 each totalling to Rs. 13,000.00 Lakhs at par, accordingly the
impairment on accrued interesi on nvestment aggragating to Rs. 7 887.84 Lakhs recogniged during the year.

40 The company has purchased development right from Crns Infrastruciure as earlier there was joint agreement of Bright and Orris infrasiructLre
Duse to this, the company has filed an application for change in developers wilh Department Town &Country PLanning (DTCP}, Chandigarh
whose approvat is pending.

Also, the company has filed an application for Real Estate Regulatory Authority (RERA) Licence with name ACE PALM Floois (sanier i was
‘Woodiew  Residencies’} for  which approval has  been received on 22 Febwuary,2021 vide Registration cerificate

RC/REP/HARERA/GGEMI430M171/2021/07

41 Lease commitments

The company does not have any non-cancelable operating lease.

42 The Company is engaged i the business of real estate development, which has been classified as infrastruciural facilties as per Schedula VI
fo the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act are hot applicable 1o the company and hence no
disclosuie under that section is requirad.

43 During the previous year, the Company has elected to sxercise the oplion permiited under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
ntrcduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for Income Tax for the
previous year ended 31 March, 2020 and re-mesasurad ils net deferred tax liabilities (DTL) basis the rates prascrited in the said section. The
irnpact of this change has been recognised over the previous year from 1 Aprit 2019 to 31 March, 2020

44 Consequent to the distuption caused dus o COVID-19, the Company has made an assessment as at March 31, 2021 of recoverabilily of the
cairying values of its assels giving due consideration {o the internal and external factors. Further, on account of continued spread of COVID-19
disease in the country, fhe Company has made timely and requisite changes in the business model as required. The Company is continuously
manitoting the situation arising on account of COVID-18 and wilt make appropriale action required, if any.

45 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (Code'} relating to employee benefiis, during employment and post-employment benefits, has recsived the
Presidential assent in Ssptember 2020, This Code has been published in the Gazelte of India. However, the efiective date from which the changes
are applicable is yet to be nofified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. The Company will svaluate the impact
of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financia statemenits in the penod in which the Code becomes effeciive and the retated nilas are

published.

46 During the current year, the Company has availed exampiion from prepration of consolidated financial statement pursuant to second provisio of
Rule 6 to The Companiss (Accourls) Rules, 2014,

47 Dudng the cutrent year, the Company has incurred [o3s of Rs, 12,310,54 lakhs | Isading to accumulated loss of Rs, 11,194.59 lakhs and negative
net worth of Rs. 10,194 68 The current year loss inciisdes amount of Rs. 7,667 84 lakhs recognised on investments sold subsequent o year end.
The Company is expecting the positive inflow from the sale of residential piots and flats of group housing society undet developmenl at Seclor 89-
90 in Gurugram. Further the Company is expecting the gain on setilement of outstanding debenlures as well.
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BRIGHT BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U43201DL2006PTC 146221

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48 Evenis after the reporting period

There ate ne event ohseived after the reportad period which have an impaci on the Company's operation.

4% Approval of the financial statements

The firancial statements wers approved for issue by Board of Dirsctors an 30 Novembear 2021

In tems of ow raport attached

For 8. N. Dhawan & Co LLP

Chanteregd Accountans

Firm's Registration No. 00003ONMNS0004T

¢ S
Viflash Jaln

Partreer
Membership Mo, $87701

Place: m& C‘lb\-k \‘s

Date: R Mave walig, L ey

For and on behalf of the Board of Direct
Bright Buitdtech Private Limited ﬂ'j

r Bright Buildtech Pvi Kdl )

or B e
Jagdeep Singh Gill Je Pratap Singh Rathi
Director 1~ Dirgctor
DIN; 01599882 o : DIN: 05195185

Place; CruamgAtasa~
Dete; 3o 'b-\aw‘tMA&Lx,‘ ) Le' 24



